
NYSE ARCA, INC.
LETTER OF ACCEPTANCE, WAIVER, AND CONSENT

NO. 2019062945203

TO: NYSE Arca, Inc.

RE: Barclays Capital Inc., Respondent
CRD No. 19714

On March 8, 2019, Barclays Capital Inc. violated Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule
14e-4 by over-tendering 270,000 shares in the partial tender offer of Company A. From
January 1, 2018 to July 22, 2021 (]TQ cFQVQ_MX] EQ[UYPd& Barclays Capital Inc. violated
NYSE Arca Rule 11.18 by failing to reasonably supervise the process of calculating its net
long position for the purpose of participating in the partial tender offer. Consent to a
censure, a $100,000 fine, of which $33,334 will be paid to NYSE Arca and disgorgement of
$218,803.52, of which $72,934.51 will be paid to NYSE Arca, plus interest as described
below.1

* * *

Pursuant to Rule 10.9216 of the NYSE Arca, Inc. (lCKG; Arcam ]` bVS l;fQVO\USm) Code of
Procedure, Barclays Capital Inc. %l7O`QZOgam or bVS l<W`[m& submits this Letter of Acceptance,
Waiver, O\R 8]\aS\b %l6J8m& T]` bVS ^c`^]aS ]T ^`]^]aW\U O aSbbZS[S\b ]T bVS OZZSUSR `cZS
violations described below. This AWC is submitted on the condition that, if accepted, NYSE
Arca will not bring any future actions against the Firm alleging violations based on the same
factual findings described herein.

I. ACCEPTANCE AND CONSENT

A. Barclays hereby accepts and consents, without admitting or denying the findings, and
solely for the purposes of this proceeding and any other proceeding brought by or on
behalf of NYSE Arca, or to which NYSE Arca is a party, prior to a hearing and without
an adjudication of any issue of law or fact, to the entry of the following findings by
NYSE Arca:

BACKGROUND AND JURISDICTION

1. Barclays became registered as an Equities Trading Permit %l;HEm& holder with NYSE

Arca in August 2004, and became registered as an Options H`ORW\U ES`[Wb %lDHEm&

holder in November 2008. It is headquartered in New York, NY and has 13 branches

with approximately 2,800 registered representatives. The FW`[na PcaW\Saa W\QZcRSa

options, underwriting, proprietary trading, and market making.

1 The remainder of the fine and disgorgement shall be allocated evenly between the NYSE American LLC %lCKG;
6[S`WQO\m& and the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. %l<?CF6m&)
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY

2. This matter arises from a review conducted by the Market Regulation Department of
FINRA of 7O`QZOgan bS\RS` W\ bVS partial tender offer (PTO) of Company A and
7O`QZOgan compliance with Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 14e-4 during the
Relevant Period.

VIOLATIONS

3. Securities Exchange Act Rule 14e-.' lE`]VWPWbSR H`O\aOQbW]\a W\ 8]\\SQbW]\ eWbV
EO`bWOZ HS\RS` DTTS`a'm Q][[]\Zg `STS``SR b] Oa bVS lGV]`b HS\RS` FcZS'm Wa US\S`OZZg
designed to preclude persons from tendering more shares in a tender offer than he or
she owns in order to avoid or reduce the risk of pro rata acceptance in a partial tender
offer. Rule 14e-.%P&%+&%W& ^`]dWRSa W\ `SZSdO\b ^O`b bVOb lit shall be unlawful for any
person acting alone or in concert with others, directly or indirectly, to tender any
subject security W\ O ^O`bWOZ bS\RS` ]TTS` j LTM]` VWa ]e\ OQQ]c\b c\ZSaa Ob bVS bW[S ]T
tender, and at the end of the proration period or period during which securities are
accepted by lot (including any extensions thereof), he has a net long position equal to
]` U`SObS` bVO\ bVS O[]c\b bS\RS`SR W\ j LbMVS acPXSQb aSQc`Wbg)m Under Rule 14e-4, a
^S`a]\na l\Sb Z]\U ^]aWbW]\m W\ O acPXSQb aSQc`Wbg S_cOZa bVS SfQSaa' WT O\g' ]T acQV
^S`a]\na lZ]\U ^]aWbW]\m ]dS` O ^S`a]\na laV]`b ^]aWbW]\)m HVS QOZQcZObW]\ ]T bVS \Sb
long position must be done both at the time of tender and at the end of the proration
period, or period during which securities are accepted by lot, including any extension
thereof.

4. On March 8, 2019, Barclays over-tendered 270,000 shares in Company A because it
miscalculated its long position. When tendering shares, the Firm manually calculated
its long position using several different systems. In this instance, the Firm
miscalculated its long position because it (i) missed a short position that was housed
in another system, (ii) used an incorrect final tender price when calculating share calls
required to be deducted from the <W`[na long position, and (iii) miscalculated
grandfathered calls, i.e., calls that the Firm was short prior to the PTO announcement,
giving Barclays credit for shares that it should not have included. These events
resulted in Barclays over-tendering shares. All 270,000 shares that Barclays
tenderedkof which 36,712 shares were acceptedkwere over-tendered. As a result,
Barclays received $218,803.52 in ill-gotten gains. Therefore, the Firm violated
Securities Exchange Act Rule 14e-4.

5. NYSE Arca Rule 11.18(a) requires an OTP holder to supervise associated persons
with respect to compliance with federal securities laws and Exchange rules. Further,
Rule 11.18(b) requires an OTP holder to establish and maintain a supervisory system
that is reasonably designed to ensure compliance with applicable federal securities
laws and regulations and Exchange rules. Rule 11.18(c) requires an OTP holder to
establish, maintain, and enforce written procedures to supervise its business and
associated persons. The procedures must be reasonably designed to ensure
compliance with applicable securities laws and regulations and Exchange rules.
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6. During the Relevant Period, the Firm had certain procedures for calculating and
reviewing the FW`[na l\Sb Z]\U ^]aWbW]\a)m 7O`QZOgan ^`]QSRc`Sa eS`S ^`W[O`WZg
operational and did not include a supervisory review regarding compliance with Rule
14e-4. Therefore, Barclays violated NYSE Arca Rule 11.18.

RELEVANT PRIOR DISCIPLINARY HISTORY

7. In Matter No. 20150464122 (Dec. 27, 2017), CBOE accepted a Letter of Consent in
which Barclays consented to findings that on or about August 22, 2013, Barclays
tendered shares for a partial tender offer in excess of its net long position, in violation
of CBOE Rule 4.2 and Rule 14e-4, and that from on or about July 26, 2013 through
on or about August 17, 2017, Barclays failed to establish and maintain written
supervisory procedures, and a system for applying such procedures, reasonably
designed to prevent and detect violations of Rule 14e-4 relating to partial short tender
activity, in violation of CBOE Rules 4.2 and 4.24. The Firm was fined $25,000 and
ordered to disgorge $42,040.

SANCTIONS

B. The Firm also consents to the imposition of the following sanctions:

1. Censure, a $100,000 fine, of which $33,334 will be paid to NYSE Arca and
disgorgement of $218,803.52, of which $72,934.51 will be paid to NYSE Arca,
plus interest as described below.2

Acceptance of this AWC is conditioned upon acceptance of parallel settlement
agreements in the same matter between the Firm and NYSE American and the Firm and
FINRA.

The Firm agrees to pay the monetary sanctions upon notice that this AWC has been
accepted and that such payments are due and payable. Interest on the disgorgement
amount is the rate set forth in Section 6621(a)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C.
§ 6621 from March 8, 2019 until the date this AWC is accepted by NYSE Arca. The
Firm has submitted a Method of Payment Confirmation form showing the method by
which it will pay the fine imposed.

The Firm specifically and voluntarily waives any right to claim that it is unable to pay,
now or at any time hereafter, the monetary sanctions imposed in this matter.

The Firm agrees that it shall not seek or accept, directly or indirectly, reimbursement or
indemnification from any source, including but not limited to payment made pursuant to
any insurance policy, with regard to any fine amounts that the Firm pays pursuant to this
AWC, regardless of the use of the fine amounts. The Firm further agrees that it shall not
claim, assert, or apply for a tax deduction or tax credit with regard to any federal, state, or
local tax for any fine amounts that the Firm pays pursuant to this AWC, regardless of the
use of the fine amounts.

2 The remainder of the fine and disgorgement shall be allocated evenly between the NYSE American and FINRA.
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The sanctions imposed herein shall be effective on a date set by NYSE Regulation staff.

II. WAIVER OF PROCEDURAL RIGHTS

The Firm specifically and voluntarily waives the following rights granted under the NYSE Arca
Code of Procedure:

A. To have a Formal Complaint issued specifying the allegations against the Firm;

B. To be notified of the Formal Complaint and have the opportunity to answer the
allegations in writing;

C. To defend against the allegations in a disciplinary hearing before a hearing panel,
to have a written record of the hearing made and to have a written decision issued;
and

D. H] O^^SOZ O\g acQV RSQWaW]\ b] bVS ;fQVO\USna 7]O`R ]T 9W`SQb]`a O\R bVS\ b] the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and a U.S. Court of Appeals.

Further, the Firm specifically and voluntarily waives any right to claim bias or prejudgment of
the Chief Regulatory Officer of NYSE Arca; bVS ;fQVO\USna 7]O`R ]T 9W`SQb]`a, Disciplinary
6QbW]\ 8][[WbbSS %l968m&, and 8][[WbbSS T]` FSdWSe %l8<Fm&5 any Director, DAC member,
or CFR member; Counsel to the Exchange Board of Directors or CFR; any other NYSE Arca
employee; or any Regulatory Staff as defined in Rule 10.9120 in connecbW]\ eWbV acQV ^S`a]\na
]` P]Rgna ^O`bWQW^ObW]\ W\ RWaQcaaW]\a `SUO`RW\U bVS bS`[a O\R Q]\RWbW]\a ]T bVWa 6J8' ]` ]bVS`
consideration of this AWC, including acceptance or rejection of this AWC.

The Firm further specifically and voluntarily waives any right to claim that a person violated the
ex parte communication prohibitions of Rule 10.9143 or the separation of functions prohibitions
of Rule 10.9144, W\ Q]\\SQbW]\ eWbV acQV ^S`a]\na ]` P]Rgna ^O`bWQW^ObW]\ W\ RWaQcaaW]\a
regarding the terms and conditions of this AWC, or other consideration of this AWC, including
its acceptance or rejection.

III. OTHER MATTERS

The Firm understands that:

A. Submission of this AWC is voluntary and will not resolve this matter unless and
until it has been reviewed by NYSE Regulation, and accepted by the Chief
Regulatory Officer of NYSE Arca pursuant to NYSE Arca Rule 10.9216;

B. If this AWC is not accepted, its submission will not be used as evidence to prove
any of the allegations against the Firm; and

C. If accepted:

1. The AWC shall be sent to each Director and each member of the Committee
for Review via courier, express delivery or electronic means, and shall be
deemed final and shall constitute the complaint, answer, and decision in the
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matter, 10 days after it is sent to each Director and each member of the
Committee for Review, unless review by the Exchange Board of Directors is
requested pursuant to NYSE Arca Rule 10.9310(a)(1)(B);

2. TVWa 6J8 eWZZ PSQ][S ^O`b ]T bVS <W`[na ^S`[O\S\b RWaQW^ZW\O`g `SQ]`R O\R
may be considered in any future actions brought by the Exchange, or any
other regulator against the Firm;

3. NYSE Arca shall publish a copy of the AWC on its website in accordance
with NYSE Arca Rule 10.8313;

4. NYSE Arca may make a public announcement concerning this agreement and
the subject matter thereof in accordance with NYSE Arca Rule 10.8313; and

5. The Firm may not take any action or make or permit to be made any public
statement, including in regulatory filings or otherwise, denying, directly or
indirectly, any finding in this AWC or create the impression that the AWC is
without factual basis. The Firm may not take any position in any proceeding
brought by or on behalf of the Exchange, or to which the Exchange is a party,
that is inconsistent with any part of this AWC. Nothing in this provision
OTTSQba bVS <W`[na %W& testimonial obligations; or (ii) right to take legal or
factual positions in litigation or other legal proceedings in which the
Exchange is not a party.

D. A signed copy of this AWC and the accompanying Method of Payment
Confirmation form delivered by email, facsimile or other means of electronic
transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an
original signed copy.

E. The Firm may attach a Corrective Action Statement to this AWC that is a
statement of demonstrable corrective steps taken to prevent future misconduct.
The Firm understands that it may not deny the charges or make any statement that
is inconsistent with the AWC in this Statement. Any such statement does not
constitute factual or legal findings by the Exchange, nor does it reflect the views
of NYSE Regulation or its staff.

HVS <W`[ QS`bWTWSa bVOb' W\ Q]\\SQbW]\ eWbV SOQV ]T bVS ;fQVO\USna `S_cSaba T]` information in
connection with this matter, the Firm made a diligent inquiry of all persons and systems that
reasonably had possession of responsive documents and that all responsive documents have been
produced. In agreeing to the AWC, the Exchange has relied upon, among other things, the
completeness of the document productions.

The undersigned, on behalf of the Firm, certifies that a person duly authorized to act on its behalf
has read and understands all of the provisions of this AWC and has been given a full opportunity
b] OaY _cSabW]\a OP]cb Wb5 bVOb Wb VOa OU`SSR b] bVS 6J8na ^`]dWaW]\a d]Zc\bO`WZg5 O\R bVOb \o
offer, threat, inducement, or promise of any kind, other than the terms set forth herein and the
prospect of avoiding the issuance of a Complaint, has been made to induce the firm to submit it.
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____________________ Barclays Capital, Inc.
Date Respondent

By: ____________________________
[insert signatory name]

____________________________
[insert signatory title]

Accepted by FINRA

____________________ ____________________________
Date Elisabeth Grippando

Principal Counsel
FINRA, Department of Enforcement

Signed on behalf of NYSE Arca, Inc., by
delegated authority from its Chief
Regulatory Officer

/;4=3769 09>58;<5 2/, #.0.&$.)"*..+"'%1&"*+1/"-#'#+'(#0(('

'*)*,(*. $&" %#%$

'+.*)/-.

1=6?598< 2<@7;=>7 41- (,*0%(&#"$..)"'*'%",2#+"%'#$./33)($$

'*)*,(*. $&" %#%$

0;4=3769 19>58;<5 20- 1'*.#(,$"+&,+"'(.+".$&0"+/&%.+*.,,)%


